UNITED
NATIONS

CRC

W\
' \Q\), Convention on the

Rights of the Child

Di str.

GENERAL

CRC/ C/ SR. 419

9 Cctober 1997
Oiginal: ENG.ISH

COW TTEE ON THE RI GHTS

OF THE CHI LD

Si xt eent h sessi on

SUMVARY RECORD OF THE 419t h MEETI NG

Hel d at the Pal ais des Nations,
1997,

on Monday, 6 October

Chai r person

CONTENTS

CGeneva,
at 3 p.m

M ss MASON

GENERAL DI SCUSSI ON ON THE RI GHTS OF CHI LDREN W TH DI SABI LI TI ES (conti nued)

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be subnmtted in one
shoul d be set forth in a nenorandum and al so
record. They should be sent within one week

of the working | anguages. They
i ncorporated in a copy of the
of the date of this docunent to

the Oficial Records Editing Section, roomE.

4108, Pal ais des Nations, Geneva.

Any corrections to the records of the public nmeetings of the Commttee

at this session wll
shortly after the end of the session

GE. 97- 18432 (E)

be consolidated in a single corrigendum

to be issued



CRC/ C/ SR. 419
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 3 p. m

GENERAL DI SCUSSI ON ON THE RI GHTS OF CHI LDREN W TH DI SABI LI TI ES (agenda item 6)
(continued)

1. The CHAIRPERSON invited the participants to resune their discussion of
sub-theme Il on self-representation and full participation. Any conrents on
i ssues raised at the preceding neeting in connection with sub-thene | on the
right to life, survival and devel opnment woul d be wel come, since the two
sub-themes were closely rel at ed.

2. Ms. KARP pointed out that the right to life, survival and devel opment,
as enbodied in article 6 of the Convention, included the concept of socia
devel opnent. Referring to the statenent by the World Bank representative at
the preceding neeting on the cost-effectiveness of the inclusion of disabled
children in society, she said she had been struck in particular by the coment
t hat econom sts were not accustonmed to thinking in terns of rights. She

t herefore suggested that, in accordance with article 45 (c) of the Convention
the Committee m ght reconmend that the General Assenbly should request the
Secretary-Ceneral to undertake studies on the cost-effectiveness of the

i nclusi on of disabled people, which m ght encourage society at |arge and

i ndi vi dual Governnents to favour such an approach in future.

3. Ms. SALEH (United Nations Educational, Scientific and Cul tural
Organi zation (UNESCO)), referring to informati on provided by Inclusion
International and the Comm ssion on Human Rights and to her own practica
experience, drew attention to the fact that national |egislation often
di scri m nated agai nst disabled children and prevented their entry into a
country, even as tourists.

4, Ms. POULTON (Christian Children's Fund) said that the Christian
Children's Fund was active in the newly independent States and other countries
in Eastern Europe, where its activities focused on the problem of socia
isolation in the hone and institutions. It also encouraged parenta

i nvol vement, capacity-building, resource nobilization and public education
advocacy.

5. Ms. M RONOVA (Christian Children's Fund), providing information on the
situation in Belarus, said that her organi zation had | aunched its activities
in 1993 with a major project funded by the United States and aimed at children
from Chernobyl and ensuring capacity-building for national non-governmenta
organi zations. Two | arge-scal e progranmes funded by UNI CEF were now under
way: one provided training and the opportunity for exchanges of information
for social workers, teachers and students; the other dealt with the social and
psychol ogi cal problens of Chernobyl victins.

6. One of the Fund's main areas of activity in Belarus was work with

di sabled children. It was helping to ensure their integration into society
through, inter alia, the establishnment of rehabilitation centres and the
creation of a network for specialists working with disabled children and their
parents. The Fund al so supported creative initiatives for disabled children
such as the opening of an art studio for deaf children and theatre workshops
organi zed with the assistance of volunteers fromthe cultural and academ c



CRC/ C/ SR. 419
page 3

fields. Young volunteers played a significant role in different projects
under way throughout the country and organi zed excursions and cultura
activities for disabled children and their famlies. In 1997, it was hoped
that a training progranme could be | aunched for volunteers to work
specifically with the disabl ed.

7. In Novenber 1993, Belarus had been the first of the fornmer
Sovi et Republics to adopt children's rights |egislation based on the
Convention. 1n 1995 a nunber of Belarusian NGOs had set up a conmttee

to monitor the inplenentation of that |egislation and foll ow up all eged
violations of the rights it was designed to protect. The Conmittee was
drawi ng up plans for the establishnent of a national conmttee on children's
rights and had proposed anendnents to the new legislation. It had established
a good di al ogue with the Governnment and could influence decision-nmaking at
different |evels.

8. Ms. MOURAVI EFF- APOSTOL (I nternati onal Federation of Social Wrkers) said
that her organi zation attached great inmportance to the idea of society for
all. While denocracy had nade great strides, econonic devel opment was

curtailing the effects of that progress. Society now faced a paradoxica
situation in which the privileges of denbcracy were increasingly restricted to
certain groups only, with discrimnation on the grounds of age, nationality
and disability. People nust consider carefully what kind of world they wanted
to live in and appropriate policies should be fornulated for that purpose.
Econom ¢ achi evenent was only one aspect. Society nust cater for the needs of
all - old and young, able and disabled alike. There would never be an idea
soci ety, since human nature was an inmportant conponent; the question was one
of striking a balance and working with human nature in order to bring out the
best in it. Cost-effectiveness was one argunent for the inclusion of the

di sabl ed, but it should not be nade the nmain reason for living together

9. Ms. KIELLAND (World Bank) said she was not sure what the economc
eval uation of rights was. She associated rights with human val ues.

The Worl d Bank did conduct economi c eval uations of integration and

dei nstitutionalization, but such projects were regarded in ternms of

i nvestments, not in terns of rights. She endorsed the previous speaker's
comments: human val ues went far beyond econom c evaluation and it seened
hi ghly inappropriate to apply World Bank criteria to such issues.

10. Ms. KARP said that, according to the Convention, rights should be seen
not in abstract terms as a noral obligation, but, rather, in practical termns
as an entitlement to certain services and facilities in everyday life. It was
high tinme that econom sts should expand their research on the eval uation and
conparisons of different types of econom c systemns, including one which
favoured a policy of inclusion, and devel oped suitable econom c indicators for
t hat purpose. Even the Wrld Bank ought to reconsider its approach and begin
to realize that rights were tools for everyday life and not nerely the stuff
of court cases.

11. M. FOX (American Bar Association) said that a solution to such problens
m ght be found if the Wirld Bank were allowed to becone a party to the
Convention. Like other international organizations, it had the capacity to
enter into treaty relations. The problemwas that the Conventi on was open to



CRC/ C/ SR 419
page 4

states only, but that obstacle could be overconme by drafting a protocol or an
amendment to the Convention allow ng international organizations to becone
parties to it.

12. The CHAI RPERSON said that, since its establishnment, the Conmttee had
been di scussing the problem of how best to involve international organizations
inits work. In that connection, she referred to article 45 of the
Convention, which provided for the participation of United Nations organs
within the scope of their respective nandates.

13. Ms. HURST (Disabled People's International), referring to conments on
how to cost human rights and the cost-effectiveness of inclusion as opposed to
exclusion, said that the best approach was to evaluate the costs of exclusion
When people referred to the expense of disability, they neant that the
exclusion of disabled people from mainstream society was very expensive. The
costs of building special institutions and organizing special transport for
the di sabl ed were extrenely high. It was far nore cost-effective to provide
public facilities with physical access for the disabled, since it was

likely that other sectors of society, such as the elderly and mothers with
children, would benefit too. The costs of exclusion as opposed to the
cost-effectiveness of inclusion frightened the devel oping world and were used
as a argunent for continuing to exclude the disabled fromsociety. It was
wort hwhil e noting that a nunber of interesting studies showi ng the
cost-effectiveness of the inclusion approach had been undertaken in connection
with the World Summit for Social Devel opnent.

14. Wth regard to self-representation, she stressed the need to look into
ways of ensuring that the views of disabled children were heard in future.
Di sabl ed adults should not speak on their behalf.

15. Ms. BLOM (Swedi sh Organi zati on of Handi capped-International Aid
Foundation) said that it was very inportant to encourage disabl ed people to
speak for thenselves and provide themw th the necessary support to do so.
The rights dealt with in articles 12 and 13 of the Convention applied to al
children, including the disabled. Sweden had taken an inportant step towards
sel f-representation by providing personal assistants for all disabled
children, thereby allowi ng them greater freedom of expression and action
Enough had been said about disabled children; it was tine to talk to them and
to heed their views. She was not of the opinion that disabled children had
speci al needs; their needs were the sane as those of other children, and they
merely fulfilled themin different ways.

16. Ms. SUTTON (International Save the Children Alliance) said that the
Convention and the Standard Rul es on the Equalization of Opportunities for
Persons with Disabilities placed great enphasis on the participation of
children and the di sabled in decision-nmaking and recogni zed the exclusion they
felt when adults and non-di sabl ed peopl e took decisions for themon matters
that affected them However, as borne out by information contained in the
bookl et entitled “Children's Statenents”, based on interviews with children

i nvolved in various Save the Children projects throughout the world, the sense
of exclusion experienced by disabled children was far greater. Since the
predom nant inmage of disabled children was one of hel pl essness, they were even
less likely to be consulted on decisions affecting their welfare. Policy



CRC/ C/ SR. 419
page 5

makers and financi al backers often saw the useful ness of consulting children
and the disabled only after they had provided services and facilities which
were not suited to their needs and which then required costly adaptations.

17. Steps nust be taken to ensure that the participation and consultation of
children was really useful and not nmerely tokenistic. The results of research
carried out by Save the Children on child participation in decision-nmaking
showed that barriers to self-expression had to be broken down, for instance,
by providing sign |language interpreters, material in Braille and information
that was easily understood and in a format readily accessible to children and
t he di sabled. Peer advocacy was al so useful and the training of professionals
to listen properly to children's views was essenti al

18. The CHAI RPERSON said that children's participation was an entirely new
i dea whi ch woul d have to be chanpi oned by the Conmittee if it were to gain
uni versal acceptance.

19. M. BASURTO (United Nations Children's Fund (UNI CEF)) said that,

al t hough a pragmati ¢ approach was needed to children's problens, an inportant
poi nt was being nmissed in the general human rights debate: the substantive
provi sions of the Convention nade no reference to the enotion of |ove. He
gquoted a UNI CEF di gest on children and viol ence, which showed that the vast
majority of young victins of hom cide had been killed by their parents.

I nfantici de was even defined as a lesser crinme than nurder in many | ega
systems. Sone thought had to be given to the contradictions of a world where
conpetitiveness was glorified, despite all the talk of solidarity. Disabled
chil dren needed | ove nore than anything else, yet the Convention dealt only
with rights and was addressed to Governnments. It was hard to ensure respect
for rights which were apparently of little benefit to society and public

awar eness and recognition of those rights had therefore to be hei ghtened.

Vol untary organi zations could play a very useful role and had to be included
in efforts to that end.

20. Cost -effectiveness was relevant only in the context of preventable
disabilities, which accounted for a nere 30 per cent of the total, whereas the
entire disabl ed popul ati on deserved conpassi on. The needs of disabled persons
could not be fornulated solely in terms of rights. The only enotion which
could really produce a change in perception and in disabled persons' |ives was
| ove.

21. M. MINTARBHORN (Faculty of Law, Chul al ongkorn University, Bangkok, and
Asi anet) said that the countries which spent the | east on the disabl ed spent
the nost on arns purchases. The ratification of the Convention by Governments
was not enough; its provisions had to be norally accepted by everyone.

Non- governmental actors were increasingly required to abide by the Convention
Sonme NGOs had decl ared their support for the Convention, although they could
not sign it. Wy could not international organizations do the sanme thing?
They shoul d include children's rights in their work, especially when they

eval uated the inpact of their progranmes on children. He wi shed to see
stronger support for famlies and carers and was in favour of
deinstitutionalization. Disabled children above the m ni num age of enpl oynent
needed nore job opportunities. Religious |eaders could also play a key role
in influencing the values and attitudes of conmunities towards disability,




CRC/ C/ SR. 419
page 6

whi ch shoul d not be regarded as a curse. Programres which could be easily
adapted to children with a wide variety of disabilities would inprove the
response to those children's different needs. Discrimnatory |aws should be
reformed. The disabled, including children, should be offered nore
opportunities for participation, as youth volunteers, for exanple, because,
unl ess their voices were heard, the goal of the fuller realization of their
ri ghts would not be achi eved.

22. M. WAHLSTROM (I nclusion International) asked whether the Convention was
available in an easily understandable form

23. The CHAI RPERSON said that it was, since many countries had issued
sinplified versions and translations in mnority |anguages.

24. M. WAHLSTROM (I nclusion International) welcomed the information
provi ded by the Chairperson because accessibility was crucial and other
countries mght be encouraged to follow such good exanpl es.

25. The CHAI RPERSON said that the inportance of the accessibility and
conprehensibility of the Convention had been drawn to the attention of State
parties fromthe outset.

26. M. ROMAZZOTTI (ATD Quart Monde) stressed the inportance of pronoting
the participation of disabled children fromthe nost di sadvantaged
backgrounds, since social and nedical services were often oblivious to their
needs. Violence and infanticide were not synonynous with a |l ack of |ove. For
some famlies in developing countries, allowing a disabled child to die was
the only way to ensure the survival of his siblings. It was the people who

al  owed such an intolerable situation to exist who should be anathemati zed,
not the parents. The sane held good for wonmen who had decided to have an
abortion because the foetus was mal formed and they had neither the financia
resources nor the physical strength to cope with a disabled child at hone.

27. Ms. KARP said that evaluating cost-effectiveness and sharing | ove with
di sabl ed children were not nutually exclusive. Love was synonynous w th al
that was inplied by human dignity, a core concept of the Convention. The
Convention required Governnents to help parents and the general public
understand the neani ng of that concept. The idea of inclusion was an inherent
part of teaching children about the value of being different and about

under standi ng others. She disagreed that the cost of prevention was the only
itemwhich could be evaluated. Resources could be saved by assessing the

val ue for noney of services and the cost-effectiveness of benefits and

al I owances.

28. Di sabl ed children faced additional obstacles to participation and the
exercise of their rights because they were nore dependent. Many lived in
institutions which did not set great store by enmpowernent. A nmechani sm
therefore had to be set up to enable such children to | odge conpl aints and
ensure that their difficulties were taken into account in general policy. The
| egal profession should play a nore active role in helping children exercise
their rights and express their views. Enpowering parents was al so an

i nseparabl e part of children's participation in society.



CRC/ C/ SR. 419
page 7

29. M. CASSI RER (Handicap Collectif) said that disabled children were
future disabled adults. Their education therefore had to focus on teaching
them to manage by thensel ves and to make their own decisions. They had to

| earn gradually how to cope physically with challenges. Teaching themto be
i ndependent was the key to educating them properly.

30. The CHAI RPERSON invited Ms. Sal eh (UNESCO to introduce sub-theme Il on
the right to inclusive education

31. Ms. SALEH (United Nations Educational, Scientific and Cul tural

Organi zati on (UNESCO ), noting that the instruction of disabled children and
young peopl e had been part of the educational sector for alnost 40 years, said
that two of the major landmarks in the | ast two decades had been the
International Year of Disabled Persons in 1981 and the World Conference on
Speci al Needs in Education: Access and Quality, held in Sal amanca, Spain, in
1994. The former had brought a breakthrough in respect of participation and
enpowernent, while the latter had highlighted the inportance of early
chi l dhood care and the adoption by Covernnents of a policy of offering

i nclusi ve education in ordinary schools.

32. There had to be a holistic approach to the Convention, all articles of
which were relevant to disabled children. Many of the principles it enbodied
were al so contained in the Sal amanca Statenent and Framework for Action on
Speci al Needs Education and reflected in the concept of early chil dhood
education. In her opinion, the |inkage between education and the issue of
rights had been a mmjor achievenent. The rights of the disabled had been
acknowl edged and provided for in a nunber of international instruments and
were being increasingly reflected in national |egislation. Education for the
di sabl ed had at first |agged behind nedical and social progress in that people
had still been placed in institutions where they had received specia

education that left nuch to be desired. The quantum | eap had come with the
recognition of the potential and capacity of all children to devel op, provided
that they had a nore responsive environment. Schooling was increasingly being
extended to many groups that had previously been excl uded.

33. It should be recognized that inclusion was a right, not a privilege.
The concept of inclusive education was now gai ni ng ground and begi nning to
repl ace the concept of integration, a change which reflected a change in
attitudes towards the disabled that took account of social and politica
factors. The issue should not be seen in ternms of disabled children whose

di sabilities needed to be renedied, but rather in terms of how schools could
better respond to a diversity of |earning needs. The fundanmental principle of
i nclusion was that all children should be entitled to | earn together in

ordi nary schools, but that principle could be put into practice only by a
reform of the education systemas a whole. Mre flexibility would have to be
i ntroduced into the curriculum and teacher-training courses would have to be
nmodi fied. In that connection, she pointed out that UNESCO had been invol ved
for the past eight years in a teacher-training project designed to help
schools neet the needs of all children. The nobilization of support, the
proper allocation of avail able resources and parent and community

partici pation were al so cruci al



CRC/ C/ SR. 419
page 8

34. I nclusion presented a maj or challenge to educators because it called for
a rethinking of accepted values and beliefs, but she believed that nore

i nformati on-sharing, especially the sharing of information on good practi ce,
woul d enabl e that challenge to be nmet. The issue of inclusion raised serious
guestions about what kind of society should be the goal and what the role of
schooling within that society should be. UNESCO the Organization for
Econom ¢ Cooperation and Devel opnent (OECD) and t he European Conm ssion had
carried out a joint study of education for the disabled with a viewto

devel oping a special instrument for collecting data which would hel p define
indicators. Tests in the field had already been carried out and the results
of those tests would be reviewed shortly. Once the instrument had been
finalized and had becone part of UNESCO s existing system of data collection
on education generally, the information obtained could be fed into the
Committee's ongoi ng exercise of reporting on the inplementation of the
Conventi on.

35. There had al so been attenpts in several countries, including Australi a,
Canada and the United Kingdom to develop indicators on inclusive schooling by
aski ng individual schools what policy they followed in that regard. As early
as 1988, UNESCO had prepared a docunent to assist Governments in review ng
education for children and young people with disabilities by identifying the
areas in which they had nmade progress and the areas in which they had | agged
behi nd.

36. In conclusion, she stressed that UNESCO s nmandate covered all children
including children with disabilities. Just as the needs of girls and women
were seen as an issue which crossed inter-organizational boundaries, so the
needs of the disabled - the world' s second | argest popul ation group after
wonen - should al so be regarded as an issue of universal concern

37. Ms. HABIBI (United Nations Children's Fund (UNICEF)) said that nore
enphasi s shoul d be placed on the need for changes in attitude, not only anong
deci si on-makers, but also in society generally. Family support was crucial
too, not only for disabled children, but also for disabled parents. Studies

i n Canbodi a, for instance, had shown that many children were unable to attend
school because they had to care for their parents. Wiy was it that
rehabilitation at the community | evel was still reaching only 5 per cent of

t he popul ation, although it had been accepted in principle for the past

20 years? Wiy was it that fewer than 1 per cent of children with disabilities
had access to school s? Those were the questions on which United Nations
agencies, NGOs, civil society and, nost inportant, Governnents needed to focus
attention.

38. Ms. STUBBS (International Save the Children Alliance) noted that the
provisions relating to the disabled child in article 23 of the Convention were
open to misinterpretation, particularly the term*“special care” in paragraph 2
and the term “special needs” in paragraph 3. In fact, the disabled children's
needs, food, shelter, |love, protection and education, were not special, but
the sane as those of other children. Simlarly, the expression “subject to
avail abl e resources” in paragraph 2 nmight tend to reinforce exclusion rather
than to pronmote inclusion. Another problem her organization had encountered
was that the needs of disabled children were not currently a fashionable

devel opnent issue. Children as a whole tended to be marginalized within the



CRC/ C/ SR. 419
page 9

devel opnent process, but disabled children tended to be even nore

mar gi nal i zed. At different tinmes, certain groups of children were seen as
nore appealing than others, for different political reasons. At present,
child labour, the sexual exploitation of children and street children were the
topics that attracted nmgjor inputs into conferences and major funding
proposals. There was thus a need for all concerned to examne their attitudes
and notivation in relation to their support for human rights canpaigns and to
see whether their priorities reflected objective reality or mere persona

bi as.

39. Anot her probl em was the range of m sunderstandi ngs, nyths and fears
surrounding disability. Mst people grew up in a segregated society, which
knew littl e about disabled people and regarded them as different and
exceptional, thus perpetuating exclusion. A distinction also had to be nmade
bet ween i npairment and disability. Inpairnent was a normal part of human life
and could be either visible or hidden: the extent to which inpaired children
were al so disabled often depended on the attitude of parents, teachers and
nei gbours towards them on how far their basic needs were met and on how far
they had access to appropriate basic support. The inpact of disability on
fam lies should al so be taken into account. It was estimated that, if

4 per cent of the inhabitants of a devel oping country with an average famly
size of six menbers had a noderate or severe disability, 25 per cent of the
popul ation as a whole would be directly affected. The main reason why

di sabl ed children were excluded was not the |ack of resources or of specia
provi si ons, but ignorance and prejudice. Gender bias also played a role.
Femal e children with inpairments were nuch nore likely not to survive and
there was a nuch higher ratio of disabled fermale children in institutions, as
well as a lower ratio of female disabled children in schools.

40. Her organization's experience showed that inclusive education could not
take place in isolation, but should formpart of an overall strategy for

i ncl usi ve devel opnent, capable of building a school systemresponding to the
real diversity of children. That system had al ready been shown to result in
reduced drop-out and repeater rates, thus creating inproved access and

i mproved quality of education for all children. Experience in devel oping
countries had shown that inclusive education meant nore than inclusive
schooling, in that, once established, it would extend to the famly and
comunity and continue throughout Iife.

41. It was often assunmed that inclusion could not apply to the nost severely
di sabl ed children. However, if enough was done to rai se awareness in the
comunity, such children did not have to be isolated and could be helped to

| earn at hone w thout having to be placed in a special institution. It was
important to pronote inclusion fromearly childhood. 1In China, where in the
past disabl ed children had been excluded from ki ndergartens, a pilot progranme
designed to rai se awareness anong teachers, parents and adm nistrators had
been | aunched, under which children with nmental disabilities had been
integrated into all classes in schools. That had resulted in a conplete
transformati on of the school system whereby child-focused teaching as opposed
to teacher-focused teaching had become the norm although class sizes renmai ned
huge and resources scarce. That pilot programme had now been extended to
cover an entire province of 56 nmillion people.



CRC/ C/ SR. 419
page 10

42. In short, inclusive education was not an expensive luxury for the few,
but led to inmproved standards for all. Wth basic educational opportunity,
the di sabled could learn not only to benefit thenselves, but also to becone
productive nenbers of their communities, thus reducing poverty. It was

devel opnent fashi on and personal bias which influenced debate on the rights of
di sabl ed children and there were nmany excuses for procrastination and | ack of
action. The key to success lay not in nore research, nore data collecting or
nmore resources, but in nore practical action

43. Ms. MBO said that she supported that view. She pointed out that the

di scussion had already |asted for seven hours and many interesting ideas had
been put forward, but there was now a need to agree on policies and strategies
that Governnents would actually be able to put into effect. Ninety per cent
of disabled children were to be found in devel oping countries, nost of which
were not even able to provide basic services for their popul ation as a whole.
There was al ready broad awareness of the nerits of inclusive education, but in
practice nost devel oping countries were obliged to focus on priorities.

44, She therefore suggested that a snmall working group should be set up to
formul ate specific proposals for action by Governnents and to define concrete
exanpl es of good practice within the famly and the comunity.

45. M. EIGNER (Inclusion International) comrended UNESCO for what had been
a very positive contribution to inclusive education. A small understaffed and
under -resourced departnent had managed to produce durable strategies and
practical policies of use to both devel oped and devel opi ng countri es.

I ncl usive education was the nost inportant aspect of inclusion efforts
because, in the long term it would solve the other problens faced by the

di sabl ed. 1Inclusive education was a |ogical outcome of articles 28 and 29 of
the Convention. |In addition, it was essential to enphasize the benefits that

i nclusi ve education could bring to all students, whether disabled or not; the
i nclusive classroom as the representative of UNESCO had said, was al so the
best classroomfor the highly gifted student - an argunent that should be used
to counter the re-enmerging tendency in sone industrialized countries to

consi der reintroduci ng special classes or schools for the highly gifted.

46. I ncl usive education was a human rights and social justice issue that was
of concern not nmerely to school authorities, but also to society as a whole.
It had to begin by being the subject of political decision-making. It was the

right of every disabled child not to be excluded or segregated. Since nost of
the opposition to changing the educational system canme fromteachers, who were
sceptical of the value of inclusion, one najor challenge was to reshape those
attitudes.

47. Ms. FRAPPOLA (Inter-Anerican Children's Institute), referring to
conditions in Latin America and the Cari bbean, where the Institute had been
wor ki ng on the subject in 36 countries over the past three years, said that
the aimwas to make schooling as inclusive as possible. However, in view of
the current crisis in general education, the priority goals were to provide
access to education for all children, including disabled children, and to
ensure that no child, whether disabled or not, was forced to drop out of
school .




CRC/ C/ SR. 419
page 11

48. However, it was also inportant to maintain a choice for both famly and
child between different ways of including the child in the education system

I ncl usi ve education should not nean dismantling the system of specia
education, which should continue to be a back-up to the ordinary schoo
system

49. Val ues in the education systemwere also inportant, as other speakers
had said. Mny educational systenms were assessed in terns of academ c
success. That should, however, not be the only criterion. It was also

i nportant to assess the inpact the educational system made on the child s own
wel | - bei ng and happi ness and the contribution it nmade to the child' s sense of
identity and bel ongi ng. Values were inportant not only for teaching staff;
they also had to be inculcated in children thenselves, to counter the tendency
of adol escents to form excl usive groups, and throughout society as a whole.

50. M. CASSI RER (Handicap Collectif) said that inclusive education nmade a
positive contribution to society in that it encouraged tailoring teaching to
the individual, the key to better education as a whole. Disabled people
shoul d not be regarded as a burden, but as making a vital contribution to
variety in society and to social dynamics in a way that the nonotony of
uniformty could not.

51. M. LINDQVIST (United Nations Special Rapporteur of the Comm ssion for
Soci al Devel opnment on Disability), endorsing the proposal that a working group
shoul d be established, said that there were three aspects to consider in

| ooking at any joint strategy. The first was to revi ew whatever recent
informati on on the treatnment of the disabled child was provided in the reports
of States parties to the Cormittee in order to add it to that available to

UNI CEF and UNESCO. Secondly, an organi zational solution should be found for
establishing and circul ating a code of good practice. Thirdly, the issue of

i nclusi on and the needs of disabled children should be brought forcefully to
the attention of all parties concerned, whether Governments in the

i ndustrialized world providing support in the form of technical devel opnent,
maj or financial institutions throughout the world supporting technica
cooperation or Governments in the devel oping countries.

52. M. WAHLSTROM (I nclusion International) said that he endorsed Ms. Mdoi's
proposal for the establishnent of a working group

The neeting was suspended at 5.15 p.m and resuned at 5.35 p.m

53. Ms. LANSDOWN (Children's Rights Ofice - United Kingdom, summng up the
di scussion, said that 10 key issues had been identified as matters of serious
concern. Attention should be drawn to the need to conbat abuse, oppression

di scrimnation and non-inclusion as violations of fundanental human rights, to
whi ch disabled children were entitled in exactly the same way as ot her
children. The magnitude of the problemhad to be recognized. Mich of the

di sability anong children had been the result of conditions adults had
created; adults thus had a responsibility to tackle the physical, social and
econonmic factors involved. Account also had to be taken of the humanity
behind the statistics and efforts nade to renedy the social isolation and the
deni al of opportunities for participation and |ove that were a violation of
children's rights. There was a need to conbat the attitudes that led to the



CRC/ C/ SR. 419
page 12

lives of disabled children being considered of less worth than other |ives.
That required political action at the highest level, legal reform practica
programmes at the comunity level, commtment to inclusion and
deinstitutionalization and the engagenent of comrunity and religious | eaders
as advocates for that process of change.

54. Al'l children everywhere had the right to life. Failure to take al
active neasures to pronote the survival and devel opnent of disabled children
on an equal basis with other children was a very serious violation of the
Convention. Discrimnatory |aws should be abolished. There was an unspoken
assunption in nmuch nedical and scientific research that perfection should be
the goal, but, although it was right to seek to mnimze inpairment and harm
to children, denial of life itself as a strategy for the prevention of

i mpai rment shoul d not be countenanced.

55. Strategies had to be devel oped to address the rights of all children
di sabl ed or not, and to ensure equal access to schooling, nedical care and
treatment and practical support. However, the rights of disabled children
woul d be tackled only when the need to change the physical environnent -
access to transport, buildings, etc. - to allowall to participate fully in
soci ety had been recogni zed.

56. The approach to disability should be holistic. That had to be the
message to States parties in inplenenting the Convention and to

non- gover nment al bodi es and others assisting in that task. The Convention
shoul d be used as a starting framework of principles backed up by the Standard
Rul es on the Equalization of Opportunities for Persons with Disabilities as a
source of detailed guidance for action. Action had to be taken at the

i nternational, regional, governnmental, local, conmunity and famly levels in
order to inplenment change throughout society. The need for participation by
di sabl ed children had to be recognized. Unless the know edge, experience and
wi shes of disabled children were taken into account, poor decisions would
continue to be made on their behalf. Participation in decisions was a crucia
part of the personal devel opnent of all children, including the disabled, and
hel ped themto grow up to be active participants in denocratic societies.

Wt hout the right to be heard, children would continue to be vulnerable to
violation of their rights. |In addition, parents were the key to their
children's enpowernent and needed practical encouragenent and support in that
effort.

57. The denial of the rights of disabled children on the grounds of cost

must continue to be challenged. The right question to ask was whether society
could afford the cost of exclusion, which nmeant the | oss of everything that

di sabl ed children could offer it. Mich of the failure to pronote inclusion
lay in the lack of political will rather than in the | ack of resources.

I nclusion was a fundanental right, not a privilege. It was about changing the
school to fit the child, not the other way round. It was about making

di sabl ed children productive nenbers of their famlies and their conmunities.
Utimately, unless attitudes were changed, the circle of discrimnation
exclusion and exploitation could not be broken. The general feeling of the
debate had been that the time for talking had come to an end and the tinme for
action had arrived.



CRC/ C/ SR. 419
page 13

58. The CHAI RPERSON said that 14 recommendati ons had been made for future
action by the Comrittee. They were that it should: prompte the Standard

Rul es on the Equalization of Opportunities for Persons with Disabilities as
provi ding rel evant standards for the inplantation of the Convention and work
with the Special Rapporteur and the Panel of Experts; conmit itself to

provi ding an early General Comment on disabled children; commt itself, during
its consideration of the reports of States parties, to highlighting the
situation of disabled children and the need for concrete nmeasures to ensure
recognition of their rights, including, in particular, the right to life and
maxi mum survi val and devel opnent and the right to social inclusion and
partici pation, enphasizing that the nonitoring of the situation of disabled
children in all States must be undertaken to pronpote the collection of
statistics and other information to allow constructive conpari sons between
regions and States; underline the need for States actively to chall enge
attitudes and practices, including infanticide, traditional practices
prejudicial to health and devel opnent, superstition and the perception of
disability as tragedy, which discrimnated agai nst disabled children and

deni ed them equal opportunities to rights guaranteed by the Convention; in
view of the appalling inpact of armed conflict in causing disability of
hundreds of thousand of children, encourage the ratification of the Otawa
Convention as a matter of urgency; underline that persisting laws in many
countries affecting disabled children were not conpatible with the principles
and provisions of the Convention, such as |egislation which denied disabled
children an equal right to life, survival and devel opment, including, in those
States which all owed abortion, discrimnatory |aws on abortion affecting

di sabl ed children and discrimnatory access to health services, |egislation
whi ch deni ed disabled children the right to education and | egislation which
compul sorily segregated disabled children in separate institutions for care,
treatment or education; work in cooperation with UNESCO UN CEF and ot her

rel evant agencies to ensure that inclusive education was included in the
agendas of neetings, conferences and senminars as an integral part of the
debate on education; encourage the devel opnment of emanci pation research with
di sabl ed children on methods of undertaking consultation, involving themin
deci si on-nmaki ng and giving them greater control over their lives; pronote the
di ssenmi nation of a system of good practice, backed up by the preparation of
training material, such action potentially being undertaken by one of the aid
agenci es, such as the Swedish Organization of Handi capped - International Aid
Foundati on or Save the Children in collaboration with some disabl ed persons
organi zati ons; encourage Governnments to make such training naterials avail able
at the conmmunity level in appropriate forms for children and di sabl ed peopl e;
wor k towards the inclusion of the rights and interests of disabled children in
the agendas of nultilateral and bil ateral agencies, devel opment agencies,
donor agenci es, funding organizations, such as the Wrld Bank and regi ona
banks, and technical cooperation agencies; encourage research into the

provi sion of statistics and enpirical evidence to: (a) pronote awareness of
the extent to which the right to life of disabled children was denied; (b)
chal I enge the wi despread exi stence of superstition, prejudice, social stigm
and deni al of access to education in relation to disabled children; and

(c) encourage the prom nence of the issue in the production and discussion of
bi o- et hi cal conventions; encourage rel evant agencies to devel op programes
whi ch pronoted alternatives to institutionalization and fornulate and pronote
strategies for deinstitutionalizing children; encourage all bodies providing




CRC/ C/ SR. 419
page 14

information to the Conmittee during the consideration of the reports of States
parties to ensure that their subm ssions included the perspective of disabled
chil dren; and consi der what nechanismto introduce as part of the way forward,
such as establishnment of a working group to prepare a plan of action

59. Ms. KARP thanked all participants for their contribution to the

di scussion. It was inmportant that it had been pernmeated not only by
intellectual insight, but also by enptional insight and understandi ng. The
aimof inclusion was to create a better society by enabling it to accomopdate
a wide spectrumof individual ability, bearing in mnd that enhancing the
human dignity of children with disabilities also enhanced the human dignity of
all children and adults alike.

60. The CHAI RPERSON concl uded the di scussion by reading out a short story
whi ch had been witten by a seven-year-old and was a graphic illustration of
the plight of a disabled child.

The neeting rose at 6 p. m




